
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL  32003

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Nov 04 2021 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize McRae Elementary School for earning East Coast Technical Assistance Center designation

Presenters

2. Community First CARES Foundation Check Presentation

3. Clay Education Foundation Update

4. Cost Savings Report from Cenergistic, Inc.

School Showcase

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

5. C1 - Minutes of Special Meeting and Board Workshop on September 9, 2021; Board Workshop on September 28,
2021; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on October 7, 2021

2021 Sep 9 Workshop.pdf

2021 Sept 9 Special Mtg.pdf

2021 Sept 28 Workshop.pdf

2021 Oct 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Oct 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

6. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda.pdf

Page 1 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40236
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39168
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40272
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39189
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39206
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39206
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sep-9-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-9-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-28-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-oct-7-regular-mtg_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40231
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda_6.pdf


7. C3 - Proclamation 22-06 to Establish November 15 - 19, 2021 as National Education Week and November 17, 2021 as
Educational Support Professionals' Day

Proclamation 22-06 National Education Week.docx (1).pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

8. C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Nov 2021 - Student Travel.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

9. C5 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and LP SW Jacksonville,
LLC d/b/a Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness Center regarding placement of School District students
into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional practice experience.

Affiliation Agreement_Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness Center.pdf

10. C6 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Park of the Palms, Inc
regarding placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional
practice experience.

Affiliation Agreement_Park of the Palms, Inc..pdf

11. C7 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Benton House at
Oakleaf, regarding placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required
professional practice experience.

Affiliation Agreement_Benton House at Oakleaf.pdf

12. C8 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Paramount Healthcare,
regarding placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional
practice experience.

Affiliation Agreement_Paramount Healthcare (2).pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

13. C9 - Proclamation #22-07 to Establish School Psychologist Week November 8-12, 2021

School Psychologist Proclamation (21).pdf

Business Affairs

14. C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

Allocation Summary_11 04 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

15. C11 - Monthly Financial Report for September, 2021

September Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

September Monthly Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and greater.pdf

16. C12 - Budget Amendment Report for September 30, 2021

Budget Amendment September 2021.pdf

Page 2 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40230
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40230
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-06-national-education-weekdocx-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40267
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nov-2021-student-travel_3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40282
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40282
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40282
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_signature-healthcare-of-middleburg-rehab-wellness-center.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40283
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40283
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40283
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_park-of-the-palms-inc.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40284
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40284
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40284
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_benton-house-at-oakleaf.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40285
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40285
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40285
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_paramount-healthcare-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40253
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-psychologist-proclamation-21.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40271
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary_11-04-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40265
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40279
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-september-2021.pdf


Business Affairs-Property

17. C13 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - October, 2021

Deletion Report-October, 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

18. C14 - BID Renewal

Operations

19. C15 - Adopt the Final 2021/2022 – 2025/2026 Educational Facilities Work Plan

Educational Facilities Work Plan 2021.2022 #1.pdf

Educational Facilities Work Plan 2021.2022 #2.pdf

Operations-Facilities

20. C16 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School
Renovate/Repair Baseball Press Box (Building 33)

KHS Baseball Press Box Backup Information.pdf

21. C17 - Substantial and Final Completion of Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Substantial & Final Certificates for TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

22. C18 - Shadowlawn Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair (Reroof) Contract Award

Backup Information for SLE Roof Replacement Contract Award.pdf

Backup Information Continued.pdf

23. C19 - Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms Architect Contract Award

KHE New Cafeteria.Classrooms Architect Contract.pdf

24. C20 - Change Order #5 for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Change Order #5 TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

25. C21 - Change Order #6 for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Change Order #6 TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

26. C22 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I,II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School
Scoreboard Replacement

KHS Scoreboard Replacement Backup Information.pdf

27. C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I,II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School
Scoreboard Replacement

OPH Scoreboard Replacement Backup Information.pdf

28. C24 - Elementary School "R" Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Pre-Engineered Metal Building -
PEMB)

29. C25 - Middleburg Transportation Fuel System Repair/Replacement Contract Award

MB Transportation Fuel System Repair.Replacement Contract.pdf

Page 3 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40240
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-october-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40249
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40266
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/educational-facilities-work-plan-20212022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/educational-facilities-work-plan-20212022-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40255
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40255
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-baseball-press-box-backup-information.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40256
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/substantial-final-certificates-for-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40257
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-sle-roof-replacement-contract-award.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-continued.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40258
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-new-cafeteriaclassrooms-architect-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40259
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-5-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40260
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-6-new-classroom-addition.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40261
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40261
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khs-scoreboard-replacement-backup-information.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40262
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40262
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-scoreboard-replacement-backup-information.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40263
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40263
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40264
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mb-transportation-fuel-system-repairreplacement-contract.pdf


30. C26 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf High School and Orange Park High
School

Oakleaf High & Orange Park High Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

31. C27 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf High School and Ridgeview High
School

Oakleaf High School to Ridgeview High Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

32. C28 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf Junior High and Orange Park Junior
High Schools

Oakleaf Junior & Orange Park Junior Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

33. C29 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 11.4.21.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Superintendent

34. D1 - School "R" Name Suggestions

Names for School R.pdf

Human Resources

35. D2 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A 11.4.2021 (1).pdf (Confidential)

36. D3 - Human Resources Special Action B

Special Action B 11.4.2021 (1).pdf (Confidential)

37. D4 - Human Resources Special Action C

Special Action C 11.4.21.pdf (Confidential)

38. D5 - Human Resources Special Action D

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39154
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39154
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-high-orange-park-high-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40277
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40277
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-high-school-to-ridgeview-high-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40268
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40268
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-junior-orange-park-junior-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40278
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-11421.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40248
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/names-for-school-r.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40232
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40273
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40274
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40275


School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize McRae Elementary School for earning East Coast Technical Assistance Center designation

Description
McRae Elementary school has been selected by East Coast Technical Assistance Center (ECTAC) as a recipient of the
Exceeding Expectations Award for the 19/20 school year.  This selection was based on a combination of criteria consisting of
FSA scores as well as observations and interviews that occurred during a site visit.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Ryan Widdowson, Supervisor of Federal Programs, ryan.widdowson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Community First CARES Foundation Check Presentation

Description
Missy Peters, Executive Director of the Community First CARES Foundation will present a check to CCDS.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Makayla Buchanan, makayla.buchanan@myoneclay,net, Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Clay Education Foundation Update

Description
Makayla Buchanan will provide a brief update of the work of the Clay Education Foundation.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Cost Savings Report from Cenergistic, Inc.

Description
Cenergistic will provide an overview of the district's cost savings and report on the value of this program.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of Special Meeting and Board Workshop on September 9, 2021; Board Workshop on September 28, 2021; Student
Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on October 7, 2021

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2021 Sep 9 Workshop.pdf

2021 Sept 9 Special Mtg.pdf

2021 Sept 28 Workshop.pdf

2021 Oct 7 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Oct 7 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 9 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sep-9-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-9-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-28-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-oct-7-regular-mtg_2.pdf


Page 10 of 376

DRAFT



Page 11 of 376

DRAFT



Page 12 of 376

DRAFT



Page 13 of 376

DRAFT



Page 14 of 376

DRAFT



Page 15 of 376

DRAFT



Page 16 of 376

DRAFT



Page 17 of 376

DRAFT



Page 18 of 376

DRAFT



Page 19 of 376

DRAFT



Page 20 of 376

DRAFT



Page 21 of 376

DRAFT



Page 22 of 376

DRAFT



Page 23 of 376

DRAFT



Page 24 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda.pdf

Page 25 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda_6.pdf


Page 26 of 376

DRAFT



Page 27 of 376

DRAFT



Page 28 of 376

DRAFT



Page 29 of 376

DRAFT



Page 30 of 376

DRAFT



Page 31 of 376

DRAFT



Page 32 of 376

DRAFT



Page 33 of 376

DRAFT



Page 34 of 376

DRAFT



Page 35 of 376

DRAFT



Page 36 of 376

DRAFT



Page 37 of 376

DRAFT



Page 38 of 376

DRAFT



Page 39 of 376

DRAFT



Page 40 of 376

DRAFT



Page 41 of 376

DRAFT



Page 42 of 376

DRAFT



Page 43 of 376

DRAFT



Page 44 of 376

DRAFT



Page 45 of 376

DRAFT



Page 46 of 376

DRAFT



Page 47 of 376

DRAFT



Page 48 of 376

DRAFT



Page 49 of 376

DRAFT



Page 50 of 376

DRAFT



Page 51 of 376

DRAFT



Page 52 of 376

DRAFT



Page 53 of 376

DRAFT



Page 54 of 376

DRAFT



Page 55 of 376

DRAFT



Page 56 of 376

DRAFT



Page 57 of 376

DRAFT



Page 58 of 376

DRAFT



Page 59 of 376

DRAFT



Page 60 of 376

DRAFT



Page 61 of 376

DRAFT



Page 62 of 376

DRAFT



Page 63 of 376

DRAFT



Page 64 of 376

DRAFT



Page 65 of 376

DRAFT



Page 66 of 376

DRAFT



Page 67 of 376

DRAFT



Page 68 of 376

DRAFT



Page 69 of 376

DRAFT



Page 70 of 376

DRAFT



Page 71 of 376

DRAFT



Page 72 of 376

DRAFT



Page 73 of 376

DRAFT



Page 74 of 376

DRAFT



Page 75 of 376

DRAFT



Page 76 of 376

DRAFT



Page 77 of 376

DRAFT



Page 78 of 376

DRAFT



Page 79 of 376

DRAFT



Page 80 of 376

DRAFT



Page 81 of 376

DRAFT



Page 82 of 376

DRAFT



Page 83 of 376

DRAFT



Page 84 of 376

DRAFT



Page 85 of 376

DRAFT



Page 86 of 376

DRAFT



Page 87 of 376

DRAFT



Page 88 of 376

DRAFT



Page 89 of 376

DRAFT



Page 90 of 376

DRAFT



Page 91 of 376

DRAFT



Page 92 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proclamation 22-06 to Establish November 15 - 19, 2021 as National Education Week and November 17, 2021 as
Educational Support Professionals' Day

Description
Every year, the National Education Association establishes National Education Week.  This year, National Education Week is
November 15 - 19, 2021.  Within National Education Week, one day is set aside to recognize Educational Support Professionals. 
This year, Education Support Professionals' Day is Wednesday, November 17, 2021.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish November 15 - 19, 2021 as National Education Week and November 17, 2021 as Educational Support Professionals'
Day

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation 22-06 National Education Week.docx (1).pdf

Page 93 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-22-06-national-education-weekdocx-1.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROCLAMATION # 22 - 06

WHEREAS, November 15 - 19, 2021, has been designated National Education Week; and

WHEREAS, November 17, 2021, has been designated Educational Support Professionals’ Day; and

WHEREAS, this occasion allows us to recognize and honor individuals who dedicate their time to
ensuring that every child in Clay County receives a high-quality education that advances the
national welfare, provides a surer foundation for our freedoms, and helps prepare our citizens
for the demands of this modern age; and

WHEREAS, we believe that the outstanding educational experience students receive in Clay County
is built upon a foundation of support from essential partners that create challenging
educational opportunities that develop the diverse abilities of children, and help nurture in each
a sense of excellence and respect for all people; and

WHEREAS, by performing their duties with skill and professionalism all Clay County District School
employees contribute significantly to our district’s mission of providing a public education
experience that is motivating, challenging, and rewarding for all children; and

WHEREAS, these individuals are deserving of our constant gratitude in recognition of their efforts to
advance the benefits of education among our citizens, in the promise of a fuller life for each
and a better life for all.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby
proclaim November 15 - 19, 2021, as National Education Week; and November 17, 2021, as
Educational Support Professionals’ Day in Clay County.

Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th day of
November 2021.

ATTEST:

_________________________________ ____________________________________
David Broskie Mary Bolla, School Board Chair
Superintendent of Schools
Clay County, Florida

Affix Seal
Page 94 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Clay High
2/10-13,
2022

Orlando, FL
Comp
Cheer

National High School Cheerleading Championships

Clay High 11/5/21 Cario, GA NJROTC Competition for State Qualifier

Oakleaf High 11/15/21 Odum, GA FFA
Students will be selecting their show pigs for Clay
County Fair.

Oakleaf High 11/12/21 Tifton, GA FFA Students will be touring ABAC's school of Agriculture
Orange Park
High

12/18-20,
2021

Port St. Joe,
FL

Boys
Basketball

Gulf County Basketball Classic Tournament.

Orange Park
High

3/11-15,
2022

Chicago, IL Band To perform in the Chicago St. Patrick's Day Parade.

Ridgeview High 12/4/21
Brunswick,
GA

ROTC To compete in Orienteering Meet

Ridgeview High
12/3-4,
2021

Tampa, FL JV Cheer Cheer Competition

Ridgeview High
12/17-18,
2021

Bartow, FL
Comp
Cheer

Cheer Competition

Green Cove
Springs Junior
High

12/3-4,
2021

Tampa, FL
Cheer
Team

UCA Regionals Cheer Competition

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Page 95 of 376

DRAFT



Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Nov 2021 - Student Travel.pdf

Page 96 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nov-2021-student-travel_3.pdf


Page 97 of 376

DRAFT



Page 98 of 376

DRAFT



Page 99 of 376

DRAFT



Page 100 of 376

DRAFT



Page 101 of 376

DRAFT



Page 102 of 376

DRAFT



Page 103 of 376

DRAFT



Page 104 of 376

DRAFT



Page 105 of 376

DRAFT



Page 106 of 376

DRAFT



Page 107 of 376

DRAFT



Page 108 of 376

DRAFT



Page 109 of 376

DRAFT



Page 110 of 376

DRAFT



Page 111 of 376

DRAFT



Page 112 of 376

DRAFT



Page 113 of 376

DRAFT



Page 114 of 376

DRAFT



Page 115 of 376

DRAFT



Page 116 of 376

DRAFT



Page 117 of 376

DRAFT



Page 118 of 376

DRAFT



Page 119 of 376

DRAFT



Page 120 of 376

DRAFT



Page 121 of 376

DRAFT



Page 122 of 376

DRAFT



Page 123 of 376

DRAFT



Page 124 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and LP SW Jacksonville, LLC d/b/a
Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness Center regarding placement of School District students into clinical and
non-clinical facilities to complete required professional practice experience.

Description
The School Board, through the CTE and Adult Education departments, is responsible for the education of students in technical
fields, including but not limited to Certified Nursing Assistant and E.K.G. Tech. The requirements for these programs include a
professional practice experience in a clinical setting. The attached Agreement contracts for such a clinical practice experience.
Approval will allow the School District to place students at the named facility for their clinical practicum, which will, if
successfully completed, allow the students to graduate and become licensed in their specialty.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow students in the CTE and Adult Education Medical technology programs to gain their required
professional practice experience and, if they are successful, allow them to graduate and become licensed.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Affiliation Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Kelly Mosley, Career & Technical Education; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Affiliation Agreement_Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness Center.pdf

Page 125 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_signature-healthcare-of-middleburg-rehab-wellness-center.pdf


 

Page 1 of 8 
Form 2016 

AFFILIATION AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AFFILIATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into and takes effect the 

23rd day of July, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) by and between LP SW Jacksonville, LLC d/b/a 

Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness Center ("Facility”) and School Board of 

Clay County (“Institution”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Facility is a skilled nursing facility licensed in the State of Florida; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Institution is currently conducting a curriculum requiring professional practice 

experience and the use of clinical and non-clinical facilities, and desires to obtain experiential education 

for students enrolled in the Occupational Therapy Assistant program (“Program”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Facility recognizes the importance of training and educating students, and possesses 

and is willing to provide the necessary facilities for students’ achievement of experience in the practice of 

Occupational Therapy Assistant. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 

contained herein, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE I 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF INSTITUTION 

 

A. Institution Responsibilities.  The specific responsibilities of the Institution are: 

 

1 To plan, develop, implement and evaluate the Program at Facility, and to provide Facility with 

copies of current course outlines, course objectives, and curriculum philosophy. 

 

2 To obtain Facility’s consent and any other necessary authorization prior to the implementation of 

any Program project or activity. 

 

3 To provide qualified faculty (in a number to be agreed upon between the Facility and the 

Institution) (the “Faculty”), who will be responsible for the assignment and evaluation of all student 

Program experiences.  Upon request of Facility, Institution shall furnish to the Facility proof of 

educational qualifications and licenses for any such Faculty, if applicable. 

 

4 To appoint a principal liaison between the Institution and the Facility for all matters concerning 

the Program. 

 

5 To plan with the Facility and mutually agree upon the scheduling of students at the Facility. 

 

6 To require all Faculty to abide by all policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the Facility. 

 

7 To require students participating in the Program to carry professional liability insurance with a 

single limit of no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the annual aggregate. Institution will 

assure that such professional liability insurance in full force and effect to respond to any claims arising 

out of the actions of the students during the term of this Agreement and for the two year period 

immediately following the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  Institution shall provide Facility 

with a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage upon Facility’s request.  Institution will assure 

Page 126 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 2 of 8 
Form 2016 

that written notice is provided to Facility within ten (10) days of any changes, modification, cancellation 

or non-renewal of student’s insurance.  

 

8 To recommend for placement at Facility only those students who have earned a satisfactory 

record and who have met the minimum requirements established by Institution, and to require that its 

students: 

 

a Provide their own housing, transportation, parking, and meals; 

 

b Abide by all applicable policies, procedures, rules and regulations of Facility and those of 

state and federal regulatory agencies; 

 

c Assume the responsibility for personal illness and obtaining medical care for any injuries 

sustained as a direct or indirect result of his/her affiliation with the Facility; 

 

d Present medical certification of required immunizations, vaccinations and consent to any 

required physical examinations; 

 

e Present Basic Life Support certification, where applicable; and 

 

f Meet the personal, ethical and professional standards required of employees of the 

Facility and consistent with the applicable professional Code of Conduct or Ethics and the applicable 

standards of any applicable governmental or healthcare accrediting agencies. 

 

9 During the term of this Agreement, to  maintain for itself and its Faculty, a policy of professional 

liability insurance, with a single limit of no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the annual 

aggregate.  Institution further warrants that it will keep such professional liability insurance in full force 

and effect to respond to any claims arising out of the actions of Institution and its Faculty during the term 

of this Agreement and for the two year period immediately following the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement.  Institution shall provide Facility with a certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage 

upon execution of this Agreement and upon Facility’s request.  Institution shall give Facility prompt 

written notice of any change (including cancellation or suspension) of such coverage and, where 

reasonably possible, shall provide such written notice at least ten (10) days in advance of such change 

taking effect.   
 

 In the event that Institution is a sovereign entity, Institution shall notify Facility of its status and whether 

the requirements in the first paragraph of this Section 9 are applicable to Institution.  In the event such 

requirements do not apply to Institution, then Institution agrees to maintain for itself, its Faculty and 

students, a policy of self-insurance providing coverage in an amount not less than the statutory limits and 

Institution warrants that it will keep such self-insurance in full force and effect to respond to any claims 

arising out of the actions of the Institution, its Faculty and students during the term of this Agreement and 

for the two year period immediately following the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  Institution 

shall provide Facility with confirmation of such self-insurance upon execution of this Agreement and 

upon Facility’s request.  This Section 9 shall survive for two (2) years after termination or expiration of 

this Agreement. 

 

10 To secure from each Faculty and student participating in the Program the necessary written 

documentation that each (a) acknowledges the absolute confidentiality of the information made available 

to them with respect to Facility’s patients and records, as set forth in state and federal laws and 

regulations; and (b) agrees to obtain Facility’s prior written approval in order to publish any material 

relating to their experience with the Program. 

Page 127 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 3 of 8 
Form 2016 

 

11 To require agreement from its Faculty and students that neither shall represent themselves as 

agents or employees of Facility. 

 

12 To assume final responsibility for the educational experience and grades of the student. 

 

13 To require its Faculty and students to submit to and provide a criminal background check and 

drug screen and a check of other databases (e.g. state abuse registries and National Sex Offender 

Registry) in accordance with federal and state requirements and that is reasonably acceptable to the 

Facility prior to placement at the Facility or any grant of access to Facility patient records. 

 

14 To require its Faculty and students to provide evidence that he or she has met all applicable 

requirements of TB Mantoux testing. 

 

B. Confidential Information.  Institution and its agents, employees, students and representatives 

acknowledge that in connection with performance under this Agreement, Institution and its agents, 

employees, students, and representatives will be privy to and have access to certain patient information 

and confidential information and trade secrets of Facility, including, without limitation, patient medical 

records, vendor lists, customer lists, financial information and other materials, records and/or information 

of a proprietary nature (“Confidential Information”).  Therefore, in order to protect the Confidential 

Information, Institution and its agents and employees, students and representatives shall not, unless 

otherwise required by law, divulge, disclose, publicize or disseminate the Confidential Information to any 

third party and shall not use any of the Confidential Information on its own behalf or with or on behalf of 

any other entity.  The obligations of this Paragraph B shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE II 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF FACILITY 

 

A. Facility Responsibilities:  The specific responsibilities of Facility are: 

 

1 To accept a certain number of students for participation in the Program.  The number shall be 

determined at the sole discretion of the Facility, based upon Facility’s space, patient population, and upon 

any other considerations as determined by Facility. 

 

2 To provide adequate conference room or teaching space for the Faculty and students. 

 

3 To provide educational experiences and opportunities in accordance with the objectives of the 

Program as mutually agreed upon by the Institution and the Facility. 

 

4 To provide a liaison officer between Facility and Institution. 

 

5 Facility will not allow students to replace the Facility staff and will not allow students to render 

service except as identified in the jointly planned clinical experience.  A member of the staff of the 

Facility will supervise contact between a Student and a resident and the Facility will remain responsible 

for patient care at all times. 

 

6 If required for the clinical or learning experience and depending on the Program, appoint a 

suitably experienced and qualified licensed professional employee of Facility to service as a preceptor to 

administer the clinical or learning experience at the Facility (“Preceptor”).  The Facility will identify the 

potential Preceptors, who will be subject to the approval of the Institution and any applicable 

Page 128 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 4 of 8 
Form 2016 

governmental or accrediting body.  The Preceptor will work closely with the Institution, which will be 

responsible for coordinating student placements, and will maintain contact with the Institution.   

 

7 Facility will provide the students and the Institution an orientation to the Facility, including, 

without limitation, its rules, regulations, administrative policies, standards and practices relevant to the 

Program. 

 

8 Facility will take all measures necessary to guard against improper disclosures of information in 

its possession regarding the Institution’s students who train at the Facility pursuant to this Agreement and 

will comply with the applicable provisions of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 

USC 1232 (g), otherwise known as FERPA or the Buckley Amendment.   

 

ARTICLE III 

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

  Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Institution agrees to indemnify and 

hold Facility, its agents, servants, and employees harmless from and against all claims, damages, costs 

and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising in connection with any negligent acts or omissions by 

Institution in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement.  Facility agrees to indemnify and 

hold Institution, its agents, servants, and employees harmless from and against all claims, damages, costs 

and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising in connection with any negligent acts or omissions by the 

Facility in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Notwithstanding any contrary 

contractual language contained herein, including any indemnification language, nothing in this 

contract/agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit of the 

Institution’s liability beyond that which is set forth in 768.28, Fla. Stat., or to otherwise waive the 

Institution’s sovereign immunity, or to require the Institution to indemnify Facility,  or any other person, 

corporation or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for any claim, demand, action, proceeding, 

injury or loss resulting from any acts or omissions other than the negligent acts of Institution or its agents 

or employees. 
 

 

HIPAA Requirements.  Each party agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996, as codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1320d (“HIPAA”) and any current and future 

regulations promulgated thereunder, including without limitation the federal privacy regulations contained 

in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (the “Federal Privacy Regulations”), the federal security standards 

contained in 45 C.F.R. Part 142 (the “Federal Security Regulations”), the federal standards for electronic 

transactions contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 162 and the amendments in Subtitle D of the Health 

Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (the “HITECH Act”), as Title XIII of 

Division A and Title IV of Division B of the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009 and 

subsequent regulations, all collectively referred to herein as “HIPAA Requirements”.  Each party agrees 

not to use or further disclose any Protected Health Information, other than as permitted by HIPAA 

Requirements and the terms of this Agreement.  Each party will make its internal practices, books and 

records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information available to the Secretary of 

Health and Human Services to the extent required for determining compliance with the Federal Privacy 

Regulations. 

 

 Elder Justice Act Abuse Reporting Requirements.  If applicable, each party agrees to comply 

with the reporting requirements under Section 6703(b)(3)  of the Elder Justice Act (“EJA”), a reporting 

requirement mandated under Subtitle H of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act  (“PPACA”), 

which provides that any owner, operator, employee, manager, agent, or contractor (“Covered Individual”) 

of a long-term care facility that receives at least $10,000 in federal funds annually, must report any 

Page 129 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 5 of 8 
Form 2016 

reasonable suspicion of a crime committed against any individual who is a resident of, or is receiving care 

from, the facility.  Each covered individual shall report the suspected crime to one or more local law 

enforcement agencies and to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services (Secretary) 

or to the agency designated by the Secretary to receive such reports. 

 

The report must be made within two hours of forming a reasonable suspicion that a crime has occurred if 

there is a serious bodily injury and within 24 hours of forming a reasonable suspicion that a crime has 

occurred if there is no serious bodily injury. Covered individuals who fail to report shall be subject to a 

civil money penalty of up to $200,000 and may be excluded from participation in any Federal health care 

program. If a covered individual’s failure to report a crime results in further injury to the victim of the 

crime or results in harm to another individual, the civil monetary penalty may be increased to $300,000. 

 

A long-term care facility may not retaliate against, discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass, or deny a 

promotion or other employment-related benefit to an employee, or in any other manner discriminate 

against an employee in the terms and conditions of employment; or file a complaint or a report against a 

nurse of other employee with a State professional disciplinary agency against the nurse or employee for 

making a report as required by the EJA. An employee has the right to file a complaint with the Secretary 

or the agency designated by the Secretary, against a long-term care facility that violates the reporting 

requirements of the EJA. A long-term care facility that violates the anti-retaliation provisions of the EJA 

shall be subject to a civil monetary penalty of up to $200,000 and may be excluded from participation in 

any Federal health care program for a period of two years. 

 

D. Nondiscrimination.    All parties acknowledge that they are equal opportunity employers and 

agree that they do not and will not discriminate against, harass, or retaliate against any employee or job 

applicant on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, sexual 

orientation, gender identity or any other status or condition protected by applicable federal, state or local 

laws.  Each party hereto warrants that they are in full initial and ongoing compliance with all current 

applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances, including but not limited to: 
 

1.       Civil Rights Act of 1964; 

2.       The Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 

3.       The Fair Labor Standards Act; 

4.       Equal Opportunity Clause (41 CFR 60.250.5(a); 41 CFR 60-300.5(a); and 41 CFR 

60.741.5(a)); 

5.       Affirmative Action Programs (41 CFR 60-1.40(a)(2)); and 

6.       Other laws that may apply from time to time as amended. 

 

The parties also agree, where applicable, to comply with the regulations set forth under 29 CFR Part 471, 

Appendix A to Subpart A regarding NLRA compliance.  

 

ARTICLE IV 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

 

A. Term; Termination.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be three (3) years commencing on 

the Effective Date (“Initial Term”).  Following the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew 

for three (3) successive terms of one (1) year, unless terminated sooner as provided herein.  Either party 

may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice of its 

intention to terminate.  Should notice of termination be given, students assigned to the Program shall be 

permitted to complete their previously scheduled assignments then in progress at the Facility.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any right of Facility that could reasonably be 

Page 130 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 6 of 8 
Form 2016 

expected to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive termination or expiration of 

this Agreement.   

 

B. Participation in Program.  Facility may terminate the participation in the Program of any 

student(s) or Faculty member(s) whose behavior, competency, ability or other conditions, are, in Facility’s 

sole discretion, detrimental to the operation of Facility, and/or to proper rendering of quality care to 

Facility patients.  The Facility will notify the Institution of its actions and the reasons for its actions as 

soon as reasonably practicable. 

 

ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. Independent Contractor.  Institution’s students and Faculty participating in the Program shall 

not be deemed to be employees, servants, or agents of the Facility, nor shall any person on the staff or 

administration of Facility be deemed an employee, servant or agent of Institution. 

 

B. Proprietary Rights.  Each party reserves the right to control the use of any of its copyrighted 

materials, symbols, trademarks, service marks, and other proprietary rights presently existing or hereafter 

established.  Each party agrees that it will not use such works, symbols, trademarks, service marks or 

other devices  in advertising, promotional materials or otherwise and that it will not advertise or display 

such devices without the prior consent of the other party, and will cease any and all such usage 

immediately upon termination of this Agreement. 

 

C. Notice.  Any notice, demand or consent required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be 

deemed given if hand-delivered, if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by 

overnight mail delivery for which evidence of delivery is obtained by the sender, at the address set forth 

below or such other address as either party may designate in writing: 

 

To Facility: Signature Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness 

Center 
1280 Henley Road 

Middleburg, FL 32068 

Attn: Administrator 

 

With a copy to:  LP SW Jacksonville, LLC 
    c/o Signature HealthCARE Consulting Services, LLC 

    12201 Bluegrass Parkway 

    Louisville, KY 40299 

    Attn:  Office of General Counsel 

 

To Institution:  School Board of Clay County, Florida 

 Attention: CTE 

2300 Kingsley Ave. 

Orange Park, FL 32073 

  

 

 

 

Electronic mail shall not constitute written notice. 

 

Page 131 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 7 of 8 
Form 2016 

D. Waiver.   No failure by either party to insist upon the strict performance of any covenant, term or 

condition of this Agreement or to exercise a right or remedy shall constitute a waiver.  No waiver of any 

breach shall affect or alter this Agreement, but each and every covenant, condition, and term of this 

Agreement shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any other existing or subsequent breach. 

 

E. Third Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or giving rise to any 

right in any third parties or other persons other than the parties hereto. 

 

F. No Employee Benefits.  Students assigned to the Facility shall not be considered to be employees 

of Facility and shall not be covered, by virtue of this Agreement, by any of Facility’s employee benefit 

programs including, but not limited to, social security, health insurance, unemployment compensation, 

disability insurance, or workers’ compensation. 

 

G. Assignment.  This Agreement cannot be assigned by either party without the prior written 

consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, Facility shall have the right to transfer this Agreement to its parent corporation, if any, or any 

of its subsidiaries or affiliates, or to a successor entity in the event of merger, consolidation, transfer, sale, 

stock purchase, or public offering as long as the surviving entity assumes all of that party’s obligations 

hereunder. 

 

H. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties, 

provided that before any amendment shall be operative or valid, it shall have been reduced to writing and 

signed by both parties. 
 

I. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement 

shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if such 

invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted. 

 

J. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced under and in accordance with 

the laws of the state in which the Facility is located. 

 

K. Electronic Storage of Agreement. The parties hereto agree and stipulate that the original of this 

Agreement, including the signature page, may be scanned and stored in a computer database or similar 

device, and that any printout or other output readable by sight, the reproduction of which is shown to 

accurately reproduce the original of this document, may be used for any purpose just as if it were the 

original, including proof of the content of the original writing. 

 

L. Counterparts; Electronically Transmitted Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any 

number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, when taken together, 

shall constitute one and the same agreement. Any electronically transmitted signature or photocopy of a 

signature to this Agreement shall be deemed an original signature to this Agreement and shall have the 

same force and effect as an original signature. For purposes of this Section, an "electronically transmitted 

signature" means either an electronic signature or a manually-signed original signature that is sent in the 

form of a facsimile or sent via the internet as a "pdf" (portable document format) or other replicating 

image attached to an e-mail message. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Facility and Institution have duly executed this Agreement on the 

date first set forth above. 

 

 

 

Page 132 of 376

DRAFT



 

Page 8 of 8 
Form 2016 

INSTITUTION: 

 

School Board of Clay County 

 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Name: ____________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

 

FACILITY: 

 

LP SW Jacksonville, LLC d/b/a Signature 

Healthcare of Middleburg Rehab & Wellness 

Center 

 

By: ________________________________ 

      Maria Doyle 

      General Counsel, Chief Transactional Officer 

  

       

Page 133 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Park of the Palms, Inc regarding
placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional practice
experience.

Description
The School Board, through the CTE and Adult Education departments, is responsible for the education of students in technical
fields, including but not limited to Certified Nursing Assistant and E.K.G. Tech. The requirements for these programs include a
professional practice experience in a clinical setting. The attached Agreement contracts for such a clinical practice experience.
Approval will allow the School District to place students at the named facility for their clinical practicum, which will, if
successfully completed, allow the students to graduate and become licensed in their specialty.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow students in the CTE and Adult Education Medical technology programs to gain their required
professional practice experience and, if they are successful, allow them to graduate and become licensed.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Affiliation Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Kelly Mosley, Career and Technical Education; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Affiliation Agreement_Park of the Palms, Inc..pdf

Page 134 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_park-of-the-palms-inc.pdf


Clinical Education Affiliation Agreement Between  

The School Board of Clay County and Park of the Palms, Inc 

 

THIS CLINICAL EDUCATION AFFILIATION AGREEMENT  (this “Agreement”) 

entered into this 26th day of October, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between The School 

Board of Clay County, Florida, (“School”), whose principal address is 900 Walnut Street, Green 

Cove Springs, Florida 32043, and Park of the Palms, Inc. (“Facility”), whose address is: 231 

Maranatha Road, Keystone Heights, Florida.  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, School and Facility desire that the public interest be served by ensuring a 

continuing source of competent health care professionals; 

WHEREAS, School desires that School students (“Students”) enrolled in those certain 

health-related programs offered by School set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto obtain clinical 

experience at Facility;  

WHEREAS, Facility is willing to provide the necessary facilities for such clinical 

experience for Students; and 

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge and agree that use of the term “Facility” 

throughout this Agreement shall apply only to such Facility as the context may require. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

and agreements herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Program. 

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, School and Facility agree that they each have the 

option, but not the obligation, of having Students participate in clinical training at the Facility, 

Page 135 of 376

DRAFT



which training will be planned and implemented, with the assistance of Facility staff, by faculty 

members of the School (“the Program”). The number of Students to participate in the Program at 

any one time, and the schedule of hours for such Program shall be mutually agreed upon by the 

parties hereto throughout the term of this Agreement. School shall assign full-time faculty or 

other qualified instructors to participate in the Program, (“Faculty Members”), each of whom 

shall possess appropriate academic credentials and/or be appropriately certified, licensed or 

registered as required by law or regulations for their profession. 

2. Responsibility for the Program. 

 (a) School shall remain ultimately responsible for the educational content of the 

Program and for the control and supervision of Students and Faculty Members.  School shall 

designate  Faculty Member(s) to be responsible for overseeing the coordination and 

implementation of the Program, to act as liaison with Facility and to be available for scheduled 

conferences at reasonable times with applicable staff at Facility to discuss the progress of the 

Program and/or any problems or issues that may arise. 

(b) Facility shall designate a staff member(s) to assist in coordinating the activities of 

the Program at Facility, to act as liaison with School and to be available for scheduled 

conferences at reasonable times to discuss the progress of the Program and/or any problems or 

issues that may arise. 

 

 

3. Responsibilities of School. 

(a) School shall only assign Students to the Program who are in good standing with 

School, who possess a satisfactory record and who have met the minimum requirements 

Page 136 of 376

DRAFT



established by School for the Program.  School shall, upon request, provide Facility with 

information relevant to a Student’s clinical affiliation including, but not limited to, previous 

clinical experiences and special interests. School shall ensure that all Students have been 

screened for drugs prior to entry into the Program and will be subject to random screening 

throughout the Program. School shall further ensure that Students and Faculty Members comply 

with all background screening requirements as required by Facility and applicable law and that 

such persons have been tested for communicable diseases prior to entry into the Program.  

 (b) School shall require Students and Faculty Members to become acquainted with 

Facility’s rules, regulations, policies and procedures prior to participation in the Program or any 

activities at Facility and shall require Students and Faculty Members to comply with such rules, 

regulations, policies and procedures, including policies relating to the confidentiality of patient 

records, in addition to School’s own applicable policies and procedures.  Facility shall assume 

the responsibility for informing School of any changes in its rules, regulations, policies or 

procedures. 

 (c) School shall maintain overall responsibility for the curriculum, instruction, 

academic evaluation and related academic matters concerning Students participating in the 

Program.  School shall provide Facility with such evaluation forms or other reports to be used by 

Facility, at School’s reasonable request, to evaluate the progress of each Student.  School shall be 

responsible for assigning all final grades for Students participating in the Program. 

 (d) School shall ensure that each Student, prior to participation in the Program, has on 

file with School any necessary health forms and that each Student has completed any necessary 

physical examinations or vaccinations that may be required by Facility or applicable law.  

Page 137 of 376

DRAFT



 (e) If requested by Facility, all Students and Faculty Members shall wear 

identification badges while at Facility denoting their status with School. 

 (f) School shall require all Students and Faculty Members to be responsible for their 

own meals and other expenses while at Facility.   

 (g) School acknowledges and agrees that Facility shall not be responsible for any 

salaries, taxes, insurance or other costs of Students, Faculty Members or School’s other employees 

or agents.  School is responsible for its own debts, obligations, acts and omissions including, but 

not limited to, social security, health insurance, unemployment compensation, sickness and 

accident disability insurance, worker’s compensation and the payment of all required withholding, 

social security or other taxes and benefits of its Students, Faculty Members and other employees 

or agents, as applicable.   

 (h) School and all Students and Faculty Members shall comply with all federal and 

state laws and regulations, and all bylaws, rules, regulations and policies of Facility and 

Facility’s medical staff, regarding the confidentiality of any medical records or other patient 

information.  School acknowledges that it along with its Students and Faculty Members are 

obligated to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1320 through d-8 (“HIPAA”), and the requirements of any current and 

future regulations promulgated thereunder, including, without limitation, the federal privacy 

regulations as contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, and the federal security standards as 

contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164 (collectively, the “Federal Privacy Regulations”). 

Accordingly, School shall instruct all Students and Faculty Members to protect the privacy of 

any personally identifiable protected health information (“PHI”) that is collected, processed or 

learned as a result of performing their duties at Facility. School agrees not to use or further 

Page 138 of 376

DRAFT



disclose any PHI other than as permitted by HIPAA requirements and the terms of this 

Agreement. School will make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and 

disclosure of PHI available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services to the extent required 

for determining compliance with the Federal Privacy Regulations.  

 (i) School shall notify all Students and Faculty Members of their obligations 

pursuant to this Agreement prior to allowing such Students or Faculty Members to participate in 

the Program, and shall inform Students and Faculty Members that they must comply with the 

requirements of this Agreement.  School shall be responsible for any breach of this Agreement 

by any Student or Faculty Member.   

            (j) School shall require all Students and their parents or guardians to execute the 

Informed Consent/ Liability Waiver in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and School shall 

deliver copies of same to Facility prior to any such Student’s participation in the Program.  

4. Responsibilities of the Facility. 

 (a) Facility shall provide the facilities, equipment, and support personnel reasonably 

necessary for the conduct of the Program. 

 (b) Facility’s personnel shall provide direction of Students in the provision of direct 

patient care and other clinical activities.  Facility shall remain ultimately responsible for the 

overall care of its patients and Facility personnel shall make all decisions regarding patient care.  

In the event of a difference of opinion concerning the care of a patient, the decision of Facility 

personnel shall control. 

 (c) Facility shall not substitute Students or Faculty Members for paid Facility staff for 

any purpose, function or task while Students or Faculty Members are participating in the  

 

Page 139 of 376

DRAFT



Program at Facility and no Student or Faculty Member shall be considered to be an employee or 

agent of Facility during the Program. 

 (d)       Any personnel of Facility who are providing any instruction during the Program 

shall possess appropriate academic credentials and/or be appropriately certified, licensed or 

registered as required by law or regulation for their profession. 

 (e) Facility shall maintain the confidentiality of all Student records produced by it or 

furnished to it by School and shall not disclose information except as required by law or as 

required to perform its obligations to its residents or as School may request for its own use or as 

a Student may direct. 

 (f) Facility shall notify School promptly of any situation or problem, which threatens 

a Student’s successful completion of the Program, or of any inappropriate behavior or 

misconduct on the part of any Student or Faculty Member. 

 (g) Facility reserves the right to remove, in its sole discretion, any Student or Faculty 

Member from the Program at any time who does not meet Facility’s professional or other 

standards or who does not comply with any Facility policies or procedures or those of any 

authority directing Facility, upon notice to and consultation with School; provided, that Facility 

shall be entitled to remove any such Student or Faculty Member from its facilities immediately 

if, in Facility’s sole discretion, the situation so requires.   

 (h) Facility shall ensure that its facilities and the operation thereof are in compliance 

with all applicable medical, state and local laws, rules, regulations and standards. 

 (i) Facility shall provide a copy of its current rules, regulations, policies or 

procedures pertaining to the Program to Students and Faculty Members.  Facility may provide an 

Page 140 of 376

DRAFT



orientation for Students and Faculty Members to acquaint them with Facility and such rules, 

regulations, policies or procedures. 

5. Joint Responsibilities.   

 (a) Both parties shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 

related regulations, and shall assure that they will not discriminate against any Student or Faculty 

Member as to any aspect of the Program because of race, color, creed, sex, age, religion, national 

origin, or sexual orientation. 

 (b) The parties shall meet as often as reasonably necessary to plan the schedule for 

the Program.  The parties agree to use their best efforts to resolve any problems or issues that 

arise during the Program through discussion. 

6. Insurance and Indemnification.  

 (a) School represents that it shall at times have in effect professional liability 

insurance, for itself, Students, Faculty Members and any other persons acting on its behalf 

pursuant to this Agreement with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and  

two million dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.  Such insurance shall cover all causes of 

action, claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments or expenses of every kind and 

nature, including without limitation, all costs and attorneys’ fees hereafter required as a result of 

or arising out of any negligent acts or omissions of the School, Students, Faculty Members or 

School’s employees and agents in connection with and pursuant to this Agreement.  School shall 

also maintain during the term of this Agreement and any renewal thereof general liability 

insurance with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars 

($2,000,000) in the aggregate. School warrants that it will keep such professional and general 

liability insurance in full force and effect to respond to any claims arising out of the actions or 

omissions of the School, its Students, Faculty Members, employees and agents during the term 

of this Agreement and for at least two years following the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement.  Evidence of this liability insurance shall be furnished by School to Facility upon 

Page 141 of 376

DRAFT



request. School shall provide Facility with at least thirty (30) days prior written notice in the 

event such insurance coverage is cancelled or materially changed. Cancellation of such insurance 

without an adequate replacement policy shall be grounds for immediate termination of this 

Agreement by both parties. Notwithstanding any terms of this Agreement or of this paragraph, 

School is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and is self-insured for its own tort liability 

up to the maximum dollar amounts for which sovereign immunity has been waived by statute as 

set forth in Florida Statute 768.28, and is exempt from carrying additional insurance. Nothing in 

this entire agreement shall be construed as a waiver by User of its sovereign immunity or 

interpreted to increase either the scope or dollar limits of user’s liability beyond that which is set 

forth in sec 768.28, Florida Statutes.  

 (b) School shall provide evidence of workman’s compensation insurance for all 

Faculty Members and any other employees who shall be on Facility premises pursuant to this 

Agreement. School is a government entity which is self-insured for workers compensation to the 

extent allowed by law. 

 (c) School shall indemnify and hold harmless Facility, and their respective officers, 

directors, affiliates, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, 

damages, costs, expenses and causes of action arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of 

School, Students and/or Faculty Members in connection with this Agreement.  School is a 

political subdivision of the State of Florida. Notwithstanding any language in this Agreement to 

the contrary, nothing in this indemnification agreement shall be construed or interpreted to 

increase either the scope or dollar limit of the School’s liability beyond that which is set forth in 

Fla. Stat. 768.28, or to otherwise waive School’s sovereign immunity, or to require School to 

indemnify facility, any party to this Agreement or any other person, corporation or legal entity of 

any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts other than the negligent 

acts of School or its agents, employees or participating students. The School shall not indemnify 

any party for attorney’s fees or costs other than those court costs which are set forth by Florida 

Page 142 of 376

DRAFT



Statutes or other Florida law as recoverable costs of court.  This obligation shall survive 

termination of this Agreement. 

7. Term of Agreement. 

(a) The term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years, commencing on the 

Effective Date, and shall be automatically renewed for three successive one (1) year periods 

unless either party notifies the other of its intent not to renew within ninety (90) days prior to the 

expiration of any term. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, either party may terminate this 

Agreement with or without cause at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the 

other party. In such cases of termination of this agreement students who are participating in 

training at the facility shall be allowed to continue said training until the end of the then current 

grading period. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided herein, Facility shall be 

entitled to terminate this Agreement with immediate effect if, in its sole discretion, it determines 

that the continuation of this Agreement endangers any of its residents.  

(d) Subject to sections 4(g) and 7(c) hereof, in the event of any non-renewal or 

termination of this Agreement, Students then in the Program shall be allowed to complete the 

Program; provided, that in no event shall the Students’ participation in the Program at Facility 

extend beyond three (3) months from the date of termination hereof.  In the event of such non-

renewal or termination, no new Students will be allowed to enroll in the Program.   

8. Use of Name. 

Unless otherwise provided herein, neither party shall use the name of the other for any 

commercial promotion, advertising or marketing without the prior written consent of the other 

Page 143 of 376

DRAFT



party.  Furthermore, the parties agree to consult with each other and obtain written consent 

before issuing any press releases or otherwise making any public statements with respect to the 

transactions contemplated herein. 

9. Miscellaneous. 

(a) This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement and the understanding of the 

parties as to the matters contained herein.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended 

except in writing and signed by both parties. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided herein, sections 3(h), 6, 7 and 

8 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 (c) The parties expressly intend that as to this Agreement, the parties shall be 

independent contractors, have no relationship other than the one created by this Agreement, and 

that the parties shall not receive any benefits other than those expressly provided herein.  This 

Agreement does not constitute a joint venture or partnership between the parties.  Furthermore, 

this Agreement shall not be construed or deemed to create any rights or remedies of any person 

not a party hereto.  The parties expressly intend that no agent, servant, contractor or employee of 

one party shall be deemed an agent, servant, contractor, or employee of the other party. 

 (d) Subject to provisions herein to the contrary, this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted 

assigns.  No party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 

party, the consent of which shall be given at that party’s sole discretion. 

(e) The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not operate, or be construed to constitute, a waiver of any subsequent breach of 

Page 144 of 376

DRAFT



the same, or any breach or violation of any other provision hereof.  All remedies, either under 

this Agreement, or by law or otherwise afforded, will be cumulative and not alternative. 

(f) Any notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be served 

personally or by certified mail return receipt requested at the addresses set forth on the first page 

of this Agreement. 

(g) This Agreement is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the 

laws of the State of Florida.  

(h) The parties hereby agree to submit any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or 

relating to the Agreement to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the 

Middle District of Florida located in Jacksonville, Florida or if jurisdiction is not available 

therein, to the jurisdiction of the appropriate state court in Clay County, State of Florida.  

 (i) Each party to this Agreement agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws, rules and regulations. 

 (j) If any provision of this Agreement is held or determined to be illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable under any present or future law, and if the rights or obligations of the parties 

under this Agreement will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, such provision will 

be fully severable; this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable provision had never been a part hereof; the remaining provisions of this 

Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom. 

 (k) The terms and conditions included in Addendum A shall be incorporate into this 

agreement. If there are any conflicts in the language provided in the agreement and that of 

Addendum A, then the language provided in Addendum A shall prevail.    

Page 145 of 376

DRAFT



  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers, all on the day and year first set forth above. 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,   

FLORIDA 

  

 

 By:         

Name:  Mary S. Bolla 

       Title:    Chair 

 Date: October 26, 2021 

  

 

 

 

 

 PARK OF THE PALMS, INC. 

   

 

By:         

         Name:  

       Title:  

            Date: ______________________ 

 

  

Page 146 of 376

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A 

 

Park of the Palms, Inc., 231 Maranatha Road, Keystone Heights, Florida.  

 

Page 147 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Benton House at Oakleaf,
regarding placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional practice
experience.

Description
The School Board, through the CTE and Adult Education departments, is responsible for the education of students in technical
fields, including but not limited to Certified Nursing Assistant and E.K.G. Tech. The requirements for these programs include a
professional practice experience in a clinical setting. The attached Agreement contracts for such a clinical practice experience.
Approval will allow the School District to place students at the named facility for their clinical practicum, which will, if
successfully completed, allow the students to graduate and become licensed in their specialty.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow students in the CTE and Adult Education Medical technology programs to gain their required
professional practice experience and, if they are successful, allow them to graduate and become licensed.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Affiliation Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Kelly Mosley, Career & Technical Education; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Affiliation Agreement_Benton House at Oakleaf.pdf

Page 148 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_benton-house-at-oakleaf.pdf


Clinical Education Affiliation Agreement Between  

The School Board of Clay County and Benton House at Oakleaf 

 

THIS CLINICAL EDUCATION AFFILIATION AGREEMENT  (this “Agreement”) 

entered into this 26th day of October, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between The School 

Board of Clay County, Florida, (“School”), whose principal address is 900 Walnut Street, Green 

Cove Springs, Florida 32043, and Benton House at Oakleaf (“Facility”), whose address is: 417 

Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Jacksonville, Florida 32222  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, School and Facility desire that the public interest be served by ensuring a 

continuing source of competent health care professionals; 

WHEREAS, School desires that School students (“Students”) enrolled in those certain 

health-related programs offered by School set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto obtain clinical 

experience at Facility;  

WHEREAS, Facility is willing to provide the necessary facilities for such clinical 

experience for Students; and 

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge and agree that use of the term “Facility” 

throughout this Agreement shall apply only to such Facility as the context may require. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

and agreements herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Program. 

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, School and Facility agree that they each have the 

option, but not the obligation, of having Students participate in clinical training at the Facility, 

Page 149 of 376

DRAFT



which training will be planned and implemented, with the assistance of Facility staff, by faculty 

members of the School (“the Program”). The number of Students to participate in the Program at 

any one time, and the schedule of hours for such Program shall be mutually agreed upon by the 

parties hereto throughout the term of this Agreement. School shall assign full-time faculty or 

other qualified instructors to participate in the Program, (“Faculty Members”), each of whom 

shall possess appropriate academic credentials and/or be appropriately certified, licensed or 

registered as required by law or regulations for their profession. 

2. Responsibility for the Program. 

 (a) School shall remain ultimately responsible for the educational content of the 

Program and for the control and supervision of Students and Faculty Members.  School shall 

designate  Faculty Member(s) to be responsible for overseeing the coordination and 

implementation of the Program, to act as liaison with Facility and to be available for scheduled 

conferences at reasonable times with applicable staff at Facility to discuss the progress of the 

Program and/or any problems or issues that may arise. 

(b) Facility shall designate a staff member(s) to assist in coordinating the activities of 

the Program at Facility, to act as liaison with School and to be available for scheduled 

conferences at reasonable times to discuss the progress of the Program and/or any problems or 

issues that may arise. 

 

 

3. Responsibilities of School. 

(a) School shall only assign Students to the Program who are in good standing with 

School, who possess a satisfactory record and who have met the minimum requirements 

Page 150 of 376

DRAFT



established by School for the Program.  School shall, upon request, provide Facility with 

information relevant to a Student’s clinical affiliation including, but not limited to, previous 

clinical experiences and special interests. School shall ensure that all Students have been 

screened for drugs prior to entry into the Program and will be subject to random screening 

throughout the Program. School shall further ensure that Students and Faculty Members comply 

with all background screening requirements as required by Facility and applicable law and that 

such persons have been tested for communicable diseases prior to entry into the Program.  

 (b) School shall require Students and Faculty Members to become acquainted with 

Facility’s rules, regulations, policies and procedures prior to participation in the Program or any 

activities at Facility and shall require Students and Faculty Members to comply with such rules, 

regulations, policies and procedures, including policies relating to the confidentiality of patient 

records, in addition to School’s own applicable policies and procedures.  Facility shall assume 

the responsibility for informing School of any changes in its rules, regulations, policies or 

procedures. 

 (c) School shall maintain overall responsibility for the curriculum, instruction, 

academic evaluation and related academic matters concerning Students participating in the 

Program.  School shall provide Facility with such evaluation forms or other reports to be used by 

Facility, at School’s reasonable request, to evaluate the progress of each Student.  School shall be 

responsible for assigning all final grades for Students participating in the Program. 

 (d) School shall ensure that each Student, prior to participation in the Program, has on 

file with School any necessary health forms and that each Student has completed any necessary 

physical examinations or vaccinations that may be required by Facility or applicable law.  

Page 151 of 376

DRAFT



 (e) If requested by Facility, all Students and Faculty Members shall wear 

identification badges while at Facility denoting their status with School. 

 (f) School shall require all Students and Faculty Members to be responsible for their 

own meals and other expenses while at Facility.   

 (g) School acknowledges and agrees that Facility shall not be responsible for any 

salaries, taxes, insurance or other costs of Students, Faculty Members or School’s other employees 

or agents.  School is responsible for its own debts, obligations, acts and omissions including, but 

not limited to, social security, health insurance, unemployment compensation, sickness and 

accident disability insurance, worker’s compensation and the payment of all required withholding, 

social security or other taxes and benefits of its Students, Faculty Members and other employees 

or agents, as applicable.   

 (h) School and all Students and Faculty Members shall comply with all federal and 

state laws and regulations, and all bylaws, rules, regulations and policies of Facility and 

Facility’s medical staff, regarding the confidentiality of any medical records or other patient 

information.  School acknowledges that it along with its Students and Faculty Members are 

obligated to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1320 through d-8 (“HIPAA”), and the requirements of any current and 

future regulations promulgated thereunder, including, without limitation, the federal privacy 

regulations as contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, and the federal security standards as 

contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164 (collectively, the “Federal Privacy Regulations”). 

Accordingly, School shall instruct all Students and Faculty Members to protect the privacy of 

any personally identifiable protected health information (“PHI”) that is collected, processed or 

learned as a result of performing their duties at Facility. School agrees not to use or further 

Page 152 of 376

DRAFT



disclose any PHI other than as permitted by HIPAA requirements and the terms of this 

Agreement. School will make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and 

disclosure of PHI available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services to the extent required 

for determining compliance with the Federal Privacy Regulations.  

 (i) School shall notify all Students and Faculty Members of their obligations 

pursuant to this Agreement prior to allowing such Students or Faculty Members to participate in 

the Program, and shall inform Students and Faculty Members that they must comply with the 

requirements of this Agreement.  School shall be responsible for any breach of this Agreement 

by any Student or Faculty Member.   

            (j) School shall require all Students and their parents or guardians to execute the 

Informed Consent/ Liability Waiver in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, and School shall 

deliver copies of same to Facility prior to any such Student’s participation in the Program.  

4. Responsibilities of the Facility. 

 (a) Facility shall provide the facilities, equipment, and support personnel reasonably 

necessary for the conduct of the Program. 

 (b) Facility’s personnel shall provide direction of Students in the provision of direct 

patient care and other clinical activities.  Facility shall remain ultimately responsible for the 

overall care of its patients and Facility personnel shall make all decisions regarding patient care.  

In the event of a difference of opinion concerning the care of a patient, the decision of Facility 

personnel shall control. 

 (c) Facility shall not substitute Students or Faculty Members for paid Facility staff for 

any purpose, function or task while Students or Faculty Members are participating in the  

 

Page 153 of 376

DRAFT



Program at Facility and no Student or Faculty Member shall be considered to be an employee or 

agent of Facility during the Program. 

 (d)       Any personnel of Facility who are providing any instruction during the Program 

shall possess appropriate academic credentials and/or be appropriately certified, licensed or 

registered as required by law or regulation for their profession. 

 (e) Facility shall maintain the confidentiality of all Student records produced by it or 

furnished to it by School and shall not disclose information except as required by law or as 

required to perform its obligations to its residents or as School may request for its own use or as 

a Student may direct. 

 (f) Facility shall notify School promptly of any situation or problem, which threatens 

a Student’s successful completion of the Program, or of any inappropriate behavior or 

misconduct on the part of any Student or Faculty Member. 

 (g) Facility reserves the right to remove, in its sole discretion, any Student or Faculty 

Member from the Program at any time who does not meet Facility’s professional or other 

standards or who does not comply with any Facility policies or procedures or those of any 

authority directing Facility, upon notice to and consultation with School; provided, that Facility 

shall be entitled to remove any such Student or Faculty Member from its facilities immediately 

if, in Facility’s sole discretion, the situation so requires.   

 (h) Facility shall ensure that its facilities and the operation thereof are in compliance 

with all applicable medical, state and local laws, rules, regulations and standards. 

 (i) Facility shall provide a copy of its current rules, regulations, policies or 

procedures pertaining to the Program to Students and Faculty Members.  Facility may provide an 

Page 154 of 376

DRAFT



orientation for Students and Faculty Members to acquaint them with Facility and such rules, 

regulations, policies or procedures. 

5. Joint Responsibilities.   

 (a) Both parties shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 

related regulations, and shall assure that they will not discriminate against any Student or Faculty 

Member as to any aspect of the Program because of race, color, creed, sex, age, religion, national 

origin, or sexual orientation. 

 (b) The parties shall meet as often as reasonably necessary to plan the schedule for 

the Program.  The parties agree to use their best efforts to resolve any problems or issues that 

arise during the Program through discussion. 

6. Insurance and Indemnification.  

 (a) School represents that it shall at times have in effect professional liability 

insurance, for itself, Students, Faculty Members and any other persons acting on its behalf 

pursuant to this Agreement with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and  

two million dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate.  Such insurance shall cover all causes of 

action, claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments or expenses of every kind and 

nature, including without limitation, all costs and attorneys’ fees hereafter required as a result of 

or arising out of any negligent acts or omissions of the School, Students, Faculty Members or 

School’s employees and agents in connection with and pursuant to this Agreement.  School shall 

also maintain during the term of this Agreement and any renewal thereof general liability 

insurance with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars 

($2,000,000) in the aggregate. School warrants that it will keep such professional and general 

liability insurance in full force and effect to respond to any claims arising out of the actions or 

omissions of the School, its Students, Faculty Members, employees and agents during the term 

of this Agreement and for at least two years following the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement.  Evidence of this liability insurance shall be furnished by School to Facility upon 

Page 155 of 376

DRAFT



request. School shall provide Facility with at least thirty (30) days prior written notice in the 

event such insurance coverage is cancelled or materially changed. Cancellation of such insurance 

without an adequate replacement policy shall be grounds for immediate termination of this 

Agreement by both parties. Notwithstanding any terms of this Agreement or of this paragraph, 

School is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and is self-insured for its own tort liability 

up to the maximum dollar amounts for which sovereign immunity has been waived by statute as 

set forth in Florida Statute 768.28, and is exempt from carrying additional insurance. Nothing in 

this entire agreement shall be construed as a waiver by User of its sovereign immunity or 

interpreted to increase either the scope or dollar limits of user’s liability beyond that which is set 

forth in sec 768.28, Florida Statutes.  

 (b) School shall provide evidence of workman’s compensation insurance for all 

Faculty Members and any other employees who shall be on Facility premises pursuant to this 

Agreement. School is a government entity which is self-insured for workers compensation to the 

extent allowed by law. 

 (c) School shall indemnify and hold harmless Facility, and their respective officers, 

directors, affiliates, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, 

damages, costs, expenses and causes of action arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of 

School, Students and/or Faculty Members in connection with this Agreement.  School is a 

political subdivision of the State of Florida. Notwithstanding any language in this Agreement to 

the contrary, nothing in this indemnification agreement shall be construed or interpreted to 

increase either the scope or dollar limit of the School’s liability beyond that which is set forth in 

Fla. Stat. 768.28, or to otherwise waive School’s sovereign immunity, or to require School to 

indemnify facility, any party to this Agreement or any other person, corporation or legal entity of 

any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts other than the negligent 

acts of School or its agents, employees or participating students. The School shall not indemnify 

any party for attorney’s fees or costs other than those court costs which are set forth by Florida 

Page 156 of 376

DRAFT



Statutes or other Florida law as recoverable costs of court.  This obligation shall survive 

termination of this Agreement. 

7. Term of Agreement. 

(a) The term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years, commencing on the 

Effective Date, and shall be automatically renewed for three successive one (1) year periods 

unless either party notifies the other of its intent not to renew within ninety (90) days prior to the 

expiration of any term. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, either party may terminate this 

Agreement with or without cause at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the 

other party. In such cases of termination of this agreement students who are participating in 

training at the facility shall be allowed to continue said training until the end of the then current 

grading period. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided herein, Facility shall be 

entitled to terminate this Agreement with immediate effect if, in its sole discretion, it determines 

that the continuation of this Agreement endangers any of its residents.  

(d) Subject to sections 4(g) and 7(c) hereof, in the event of any non-renewal or 

termination of this Agreement, Students then in the Program shall be allowed to complete the 

Program; provided, that in no event shall the Students’ participation in the Program at Facility 

extend beyond three (3) months from the date of termination hereof.  In the event of such non-

renewal or termination, no new Students will be allowed to enroll in the Program.   

8. Use of Name. 

Unless otherwise provided herein, neither party shall use the name of the other for any 

commercial promotion, advertising or marketing without the prior written consent of the other 

Page 157 of 376

DRAFT



party.  Furthermore, the parties agree to consult with each other and obtain written consent 

before issuing any press releases or otherwise making any public statements with respect to the 

transactions contemplated herein. 

9. Miscellaneous. 

(a) This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement and the understanding of the 

parties as to the matters contained herein.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended 

except in writing and signed by both parties. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided herein, sections 3(h), 6, 7 and 

8 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

 (c) The parties expressly intend that as to this Agreement, the parties shall be 

independent contractors, have no relationship other than the one created by this Agreement, and 

that the parties shall not receive any benefits other than those expressly provided herein.  This 

Agreement does not constitute a joint venture or partnership between the parties.  Furthermore, 

this Agreement shall not be construed or deemed to create any rights or remedies of any person 

not a party hereto.  The parties expressly intend that no agent, servant, contractor or employee of 

one party shall be deemed an agent, servant, contractor, or employee of the other party. 

 (d) Subject to provisions herein to the contrary, this Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted 

assigns.  No party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 

party, the consent of which shall be given at that party’s sole discretion. 

(e) The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not operate, or be construed to constitute, a waiver of any subsequent breach of 

Page 158 of 376

DRAFT



the same, or any breach or violation of any other provision hereof.  All remedies, either under 

this Agreement, or by law or otherwise afforded, will be cumulative and not alternative. 

(f) Any notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be served 

personally or by certified mail return receipt requested at the addresses set forth on the first page 

of this Agreement. 

(g) This Agreement is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the 

laws of the State of Florida.  

(h) The parties hereby agree to submit any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or 

relating to the Agreement to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the 

Middle District of Florida located in Jacksonville, Florida or if jurisdiction is not available 

therein, to the jurisdiction of the appropriate state court in Clay County, State of Florida.  

 (i) Each party to this Agreement agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state 

and local laws, rules and regulations. 

 (j) If any provision of this Agreement is held or determined to be illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable under any present or future law, and if the rights or obligations of the parties 

under this Agreement will not be materially and adversely affected thereby, such provision will 

be fully severable; this Agreement will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable provision had never been a part hereof; the remaining provisions of this 

Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will not be affected by the illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable provision or by its severance herefrom. 

 (k) The terms and conditions included in Addendum A shall be incorporate into this 

agreement. If there are any conflicts in the language provided in the agreement and that of 

Addendum A, then the language provided in Addendum A shall prevail.    

Page 159 of 376

DRAFT



  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers, all on the day and year first set forth above. 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,   

FLORIDA 

  

 

 By:         

Name:  Mary S. Bolla 

       Title:    Chair 

 Date: October 26, 2021 

  

 

 

 

 

 Benton House at Oakleaf 

   

 

By:         

         Name: Jennifer Weatherly 

       Title: Executive Director 

            Date: ______________________ 

 

  

Page 160 of 376

DRAFT



EXHIBIT A 

 

Benton House at Oakleaf, 417 Oakleaf Plantation Parkway, Jacksonville, Florida 32222  

  

 

Page 161 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Approve Affiliation Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Paramount Healthcare, regarding
placement of School District students into clinical and non-clinical facilities to complete required professional practice
experience.

Description
The School Board, through the CTE and Adult Education departments, is responsible for the education of students in technical
fields, including but not limited to Certified Nursing Assistant and E.K.G. Tech. The requirements for these programs include a
professional practice experience in a clinical setting. The attached Agreement contracts for such a clinical practice experience.
Approval will allow the School District to place students at the named facility for their clinical practicum, which will, if
successfully completed, allow the students to graduate and become licensed in their specialty.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow students in the CTE and Adult Education Medical technology programs to gain their required
professional practice experience and, if they are successful, allow them to graduate and become licensed.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Affiliation Agreement as submitted.

Contact
Kelly Mosley, Career & Technical Education; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Affiliation Agreement_Paramount Healthcare (2).pdf

Page 162 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/affiliation-agreement_paramount-healthcare-2.pdf


Page 163 of 376

DRAFT



Page 164 of 376

DRAFT



Page 165 of 376

DRAFT



Page 166 of 376

DRAFT



Page 167 of 376

DRAFT



Page 168 of 376

DRAFT



Page 169 of 376

DRAFT



Page 170 of 376

DRAFT



Page 171 of 376

DRAFT



Page 172 of 376

DRAFT



Page 173 of 376

DRAFT



Page 174 of 376

DRAFT



Page 175 of 376

DRAFT



Page 176 of 376

DRAFT



Page 177 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Proclamation #22-07 to Establish School Psychologist Week November 8-12, 2021

Description
November 8-12 2021 is National School Psychology Week (NSPW).  School psychologists are uniquely qualified members of
school teams that support students’ ability to learn and teachers’ ability to teach. This year’s NSPW theme is “Get In GEAR”-
Grow, Engage, Advocate, Rise.  We want to recognize the contributions of school psychologists in supporting the academic
success of our students.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County recognized and appreciated the contributions of school psychologists.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support the work of school psychologists and the provision of their
services that assist students and families in promoting academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
The school board will proclaim November 8-12 School Psychologist Week and recognize the contributions of school
psychologist to our academic community.

Contact
Laura Fogarty: laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6513

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

School Psychologist Proclamation (21).pdf

Page 178 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-psychologist-proclamation-21.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION #22-07 

 
 

Whereas,   School Psychologists in Clay County serve as vital members of the educational team, playing a central role in creating a 
positive environment at schools; and 

 

Whereas,   Children and youth learn best when they are healthy, supported, and receive an education that enables them to thrive 
academically, socially, and emotionally; and 

 
Whereas,    Schools can more effectively ensure that all students are able to learn when they meet the needs of the whole child and 

provide integrated, multi-tiered supports; and 
 
Whereas,    Children’s mental health is directly linked to their learning and development; and 
 
Whereas,    Sound psychological principles are integral to instruction and learning, school safety, social and emotional development, 

prevention, early intervention, and support of culturally diverse student populations; and 
 
Whereas,    School Psychologists in Clay County are specially trained to foster and deliver, in the school and community, a continuum 

of mental health services and academic supports that lower barriers to teaching and learning; and 
 
Whereas,    School Psychologists in Clay County help children thrive by nurturing their individual strengths across both personal and 

academic endeavors; and  
 
Whereas,   School Psychologists in Clay County are trained to assess student and school-based barriers to learning and individual 

strengths, utilize data-based decision-making, implement research-driven prevention and intervention strategies, and evaluate 
outcomes and improve accountability; and 

 
Whereas,   Clay County District Schools should recognize the vital role that School Psychologists play in the personal and academic 

development of our District’s children. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby recognize the importance and hard 

work of our district’s school psychologists, and extend greetings and best wishes to all observing November 8-12 2021 as 
National School Psychology Week. 

 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 4th   day of 
November , 2021. 
       
ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Mary Bolla, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida  

Page 179 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2021-2022 school year. 
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

Allocation Summary_11 04 2021.pdf

Page 180 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary_11-04-2021.pdf


Page 181 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Monthly Financial Report for September, 2021

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending September 30, 2021.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
September, 2021.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Report reflects the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

September Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

September Monthly Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and greater.pdf

Page 182 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_1.pdf


Page 183 of 376

DRAFT



Page 184 of 376

DRAFT



Page 185 of 376

DRAFT



Page 186 of 376

DRAFT



Page 187 of 376

DRAFT



Page 188 of 376

DRAFT



Page 189 of 376

DRAFT



Page 190 of 376

DRAFT



Page 191 of 376

DRAFT



Page 192 of 376

DRAFT



Page 193 of 376

DRAFT



Page 194 of 376

DRAFT



Page 195 of 376

DRAFT



Page 196 of 376

DRAFT



Page 197 of 376

DRAFT



Page 198 of 376

DRAFT



Page 199 of 376

DRAFT



Page 200 of 376

DRAFT



Page 201 of 376

DRAFT



Page 202 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Budget Amendment Report for September 30, 2021

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for September 2021 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment September 2021.pdf

Page 203 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-september-2021.pdf


Page 204 of 376

DRAFT



Page 205 of 376

DRAFT



Page 206 of 376

DRAFT



Page 207 of 376

DRAFT



Page 208 of 376

DRAFT



Page 209 of 376

DRAFT



Page 210 of 376

DRAFT



Page 211 of 376

DRAFT



Page 212 of 376

DRAFT



Page 213 of 376

DRAFT



Page 214 of 376

DRAFT



Page 215 of 376

DRAFT



Page 216 of 376

DRAFT



Page 217 of 376

DRAFT



Page 218 of 376

DRAFT



Page 219 of 376

DRAFT



Page 220 of 376

DRAFT



Page 221 of 376

DRAFT



Page 222 of 376

DRAFT



Page 223 of 376

DRAFT



Page 224 of 376

DRAFT



Page 225 of 376

DRAFT



Page 226 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - October, 2021

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of September, 2021.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - October, 2021 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report-October, 2021.pdf

Page 227 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-october-2021.pdf


Depreciation

10/31/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0232 GROVE PARK ELEMENTARY

3,121.30 3,121.30SCRUBBER: MINUTEMAN AUTO W/CHA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/29/199900066991
1,284.25 1,284.25CART: IPAD EZN CHARGING CEF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 12/02/201415000704

4,405.554,405.55

LCTN 0252 ORANGE PARK HIGH
1,720.50 1,720.50MIXER:20QT Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 08/27/199000048572
2,990.00 2,990.00ATV:SUZUKI QUAD LT-F160 - 4 WH Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 08/31/199800073101
1,349.00 1,349.00PROJECTOR: PHILIPS B-SURE SV1 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 05/08/200300078406

6,059.506,059.50

LCTN 0352 LAKESIDE ELEMENTARY
1,639.38 1,639.38CAMCORDER: MINI DV PACK - PANA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 09/08/200500083984
1,284.00 1,284.00TELEPROMPTER: UNIVERSAL 15 VGA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 08/11/200500083989
1,294.00 1,294.00SMARTBOARD: 77 " INTERACTIVE W Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 05/22/200800095432
1,095.00 1,095.00MIXER: VIDEO 4 CHANNEL - EDIRO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 10/08/200910000045
1,045.84 1,045.84LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6420 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 06/07/201212000859

6,358.226,358.22

LCTN 0381 MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY
1,177.57 1,177.57LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6400 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 01/08/200909000299

1,177.571,177.57

LCTN 0391 MIDDLEBURG HIGH
1,959.00 1,959.00CABINET HOT W/CASTERS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 03/25/199600062424
1,542.30 1,542.30MACHINE: ICE-O-MATIC WITH STOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 02/09/200600087044

3,501.303,501.30

LCTN 0411 CLAY HILL ELEMENTARY
3,248.00 3,248.00DUPLICATOR: W/CABINET - RICOH Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 01/13/201111000558

3,248.003,248.00

LCTN 0481 LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL
2,424.50 2,424.50WARMERS: HEATED CABINETS/WHEEL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 05/24/200600086805
2,424.50 2,424.50WARMERS: HEATED CABINETS/WHEEL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 05/24/200600086810
3,550.00 3,085.12COPIER: DIGITAL W/CAB - RICOH Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 06/06/201313000622

7,934.128,399.00

10/31/202110/01/2021Date Range 113:29:4710/04/2021 Page 228 of 376

DRAFT



Depreciation

10/31/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL

3,488.50 3,488.50ICE MACHINE: FLAKER CUBELET-HO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 09/10/200910000048
3,488.503,488.50

LCTN 0601 COPPERGATE ELEMENTARY
1,148.00 1,148.00CHASSIS/MONITOR/KEYBOARD-IMAC Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 07/26/200700092394

1,148.001,148.00

LCTN 0769 ST JOHNS COUNTRY DAY
10,266.08 10,266.08PROJECTOR: LCD DUAL LAMP SYSTE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 11/22/200500087083
1,139.57 1,139.57CONTROLLER: PROGRAMMING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 11/22/200500087085
1,623.57 1,623.57CONTROL SYSTEM: W/ETHERNET - C Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 11/22/200500087086
1,519.58 1,519.58VIDEO SCALER/SEAMLESS SWITCHER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 11/22/200500087087

14,548.8014,548.80

LCTN 9004 CLIMATE AND CULTURE
1,025.70 1,025.70LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 06/13/201313100562

1,025.701,025.70

LCTN 9021 MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT
3,152.28 225.16COOLER: MILK TRAULSEN RMC49S6 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 12/17/201819000324

225.163,152.28

LCTN 9025 SCHOOL POLICE DEPARTMENT
8,224.00 5,580.57COPIER: MULTIFUNCTION RICOH MP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 10/09/201415000395

5,580.578,224.00

LCTN 9106 TITLE 1
1,332.00 1,332.00LAPTOP: MACBOOK AIR - APPLE MD Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  10/04/2021 09/11/201415000491

1,332.001,332.00

LCTN 9110 FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES
1,875.00 1,875.00CABINET:HOT W/ACCESS CRESCOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 05/17/199400058338
3,015.00 3,015.00UNIT MOBILE W/5 HOT WELLS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 02/22/199500059196
1,822.52 1,822.52TABLE SERVING MOBILE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 03/25/199600061981
2,983.52 2,983.52UNIT MOBILE HOT SERVING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 03/25/199600061984
4,090.00 4,090.00SERVING UNIT:HOT FOOD W/ACCESS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079210
4,090.00 4,090.00SERVING UNIT:HOT FOOD W/ACCESS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079213

10/31/202110/01/2021Date Range 213:29:4710/04/2021 Page 229 of 376

DRAFT



Depreciation

10/31/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
3,555.00 3,555.00SERVING UNIT:COLD FOOD W/ACCES Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079216
3,555.00 3,555.00SERVING UNIT:COLD FOOD W/ACCES Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079219
1,605.00 1,605.00CASHIER UNIT:MOBILE W/ACCESS B Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079221
1,605.00 1,605.00CASHIER UNIT:MOBILE W/ACCESS B Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 07/24/200300079227
2,424.50 2,424.50WARMERS: HEATED CABINETS/WHEEL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 05/24/200600086807
3,750.22 3,750.22CABINET: HOLDING HOT FOOD-ALTO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  10/04/2021 11/10/201112000189

34,370.7634,370.76

100,439.18
Totals for Deletion Report

94,403.75

Note: SEPTEMBER 2021 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
100,439.18

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

10/31/202110/01/2021Date Range 313:29:4710/04/2021 Page 230 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Two-Way Portable Radios County Wide Bid #18-F-229:  Contract Period is December 1, 2021 through November 30, 2024.
The contract period is for three (3) years and is the first and final renewal option for Bid.
 

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Two-Way Portable Radios-County Wide Bid #18-F-229:

KENWOOD Brand to T.J. Communications. 1860 State Road 207, Saint Augustine, FL, 32086-
MOTOROLA Brand to Bear Communications, Inc. 4401 Vineland Road Suite A-3, Orlando, FL, 32811-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Two-Way Portable Radios-County Wide Bid #18-F-229: The total estimated expenditure for the final 3 year contract renewal
is $67,360.00. Estimated annual spend of $10,000.00 for 2021-22, $28,680.00 for 2022-23, and $28,680.00 for 2023-24 from
General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 231 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Adopt the Final 2021/2022 – 2025/2026 Educational Facilities Work Plan

Description
The Educational Facilities Work Plan is developed and reviewed by District staff and approved by the School Board each fiscal
year.  The plan establishes a systematic approach to Educational Facility Construction in order to meet the needs of the district.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The Board has reviewed and approved the Educational Facilities Work Plan in previous years.

Expected Outcomes
Meet the state requirement by submitting the five-year Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Adopt the plan.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As shown in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Educational Facilities Work Plan 2021.2022 #1.pdf

Educational Facilities Work Plan 2021.2022 #2.pdf

Page 232 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/educational-facilities-work-plan-20212022-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/educational-facilities-work-plan-20212022-2.pdf


Page 233 of 376

DRAFT



Page 234 of 376

DRAFT



Page 235 of 376

DRAFT



Page 236 of 376

DRAFT



Page 237 of 376

DRAFT



Page 238 of 376

DRAFT



Page 239 of 376

DRAFT



Page 240 of 376

DRAFT



Page 241 of 376

DRAFT



Page 242 of 376

DRAFT



Page 243 of 376

DRAFT



Page 244 of 376

DRAFT



Page 245 of 376

DRAFT



Page 246 of 376

DRAFT



Page 247 of 376

DRAFT



Page 248 of 376

DRAFT



Page 249 of 376

DRAFT



Page 250 of 376

DRAFT



Page 251 of 376

DRAFT



Page 252 of 376

DRAFT



Page 253 of 376

DRAFT



Page 254 of 376

DRAFT



Page 255 of 376

DRAFT



Page 256 of 376

DRAFT



Page 257 of 376

DRAFT



Page 258 of 376

DRAFT



Page 259 of 376

DRAFT



Page 260 of 376

DRAFT



Page 261 of 376

DRAFT



Page 262 of 376

DRAFT



Page 263 of 376

DRAFT



Page 264 of 376

DRAFT



Page 265 of 376

DRAFT



Page 266 of 376

DRAFT



Page 267 of 376

DRAFT



Page 268 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School
Renovate/Repair Baseball Press Box (Building 33)

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received
staff review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I,II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
Keystone Heights High School baseball press box (building 33) needs to be re-constructed.

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary, and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III)  Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heightgs High School
Renovae/Repair Baseball Press Box (Building 33).

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The project estimate of $166,768.00 by Brian Boatright, Architect, is available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHS Baseball Press Box Backup Information.pdf

Page 269 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-baseball-press-box-backup-information.pdf


Page 270 of 376

DRAFT



Page 271 of 376

DRAFT



Page 272 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Substantial and Final Completion of Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has
reached Substantial Completion on September 27, 2021 and Final Completion on October 14, 2021 in accordance with the
project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Substantial & Final Certificates for TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

Page 273 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/substantial-final-certificates-for-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 274 of 376

DRAFT



Page 275 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Shadowlawn Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair (Reroof) Contract Award

Description
The Shadowlawn Elementary School roof replacement project was listed and approved by the School Board as part of the
2020/21 Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The district will be utilizing Association of Educational Purchasing Agencies Coop
(AEPA #IFB-3021-D). The contract amount is $1,125,862.21. Per School Board policy, contracts over $500,000.00 must be
approved by the School Board of Clay County; therefore, this contract is being presented for approval.

Gap Analysis
Shadowlawn Elementary School is in need of roof replacement/repair.

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the awarded vendor to provide quality construction services as specified for the
Shadowlawn Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Weatherproofing Technologies, Inc. using AEPA #IFB-3021-D Bid in the amount of
$1,125,862.21.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The contract amount of $1,125,862.21 is available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Backup Information for SLE Roof Replacement Contract Award.pdf

Backup Information Continued.pdf

Page 276 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-sle-roof-replacement-contract-award.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-continued.pdf


Page 277 of 376

DRAFT



Page 278 of 376

DRAFT



Page 279 of 376

DRAFT



Page 280 of 376

DRAFT



Page 281 of 376

DRAFT



Page 282 of 376

DRAFT



Page 283 of 376

DRAFT



Page 284 of 376

DRAFT



Page 285 of 376

DRAFT



Page 286 of 376

DRAFT



Page 287 of 376

DRAFT



Page 288 of 376

DRAFT



Page 289 of 376

DRAFT



Page 290 of 376

DRAFT



Page 291 of 376

DRAFT



Page 292 of 376

DRAFT



Page 293 of 376

DRAFT



Page 294 of 376

DRAFT



Page 295 of 376

DRAFT



Page 296 of 376

DRAFT



Page 297 of 376

DRAFT



Page 298 of 376

DRAFT



Page 299 of 376

DRAFT



Page 300 of 376

DRAFT



Page 301 of 376

DRAFT



Page 302 of 376

DRAFT



Page 303 of 376

DRAFT



Page 304 of 376

DRAFT



Page 305 of 376

DRAFT



Page 306 of 376

DRAFT



Page 307 of 376

DRAFT



Page 308 of 376

DRAFT



Page 309 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms Architect Contract Award

Description
The Architect selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.005. The project was advertised for three
consecutive weeks with The Clay Today. Seven (7) firms submitted proposals. Selection Committee members were Dr. Michael
Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, Michael Griffis, Project Manager, and Ashley Gilhousen, School Board
Member. 
As a result of the interviews and after due consideration, the Selection Committee recommends the following firms as listed in
priority order:
1. Paul Stresing Associates, Inc.
2. Bhide & Hall Architects
3. Harvard Jolly

Gap Analysis
Keystone Heights Elementary School needs a new, larger cafeteria and renovated permanent classroom space to accommodate
current population.

Previous Outcomes
The Board has previously awarded Architect contracts for specific projects.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the awarded Architectural firm to provide quality design services for the Keystone
Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms project per contract to include design services for a new cafeteria,
additional classroom spaces, renovation of existing cafeteria space, master planning and site improvements.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Appoint the top ranked firm, Paul Stresing Associates, Inc., at a fee of 7.31% of the construction cost for Keystone Heights
Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms. The fee is in alignment with the Florida Department of Management Services,
AE Fee Schedule, Group B.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All Funding necessary for the Architectural fees resulting from this contract are budgeted within the Educational Facilities Plan.
The exact amount of fees cannot be determined at this time. Exact fee amount will be determined by the Guaranteed Maximum
Price (GMP) provided by the construction management firm for this project once awarded.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHE New Cafeteria.Classrooms Architect Contract.pdf

Page 310 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-new-cafeteriaclassrooms-architect-contract.pdf


Page 311 of 376

DRAFT



Page 312 of 376

DRAFT



Page 313 of 376

DRAFT



Page 314 of 376

DRAFT



Page 315 of 376

DRAFT



Page 316 of 376

DRAFT



Page 317 of 376

DRAFT



Page 318 of 376

DRAFT



Page 319 of 376

DRAFT



Page 320 of 376

DRAFT



Page 321 of 376

DRAFT



Page 322 of 376

DRAFT



Page 323 of 376

DRAFT



Page 324 of 376

DRAFT



Page 325 of 376

DRAFT



Page 326 of 376

DRAFT



Page 327 of 376

DRAFT



Page 328 of 376

DRAFT



Page 329 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Change Order #5 for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order was initiated by Owner to delete “built-in bookshelves” and
replace them with “moveable furniture type” to provide the teachers with a more flexible classroom layout.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #5.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will decrease the contract amount by $4,300.00. Architect fees will not increase as a result of this Change
Order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #5 TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

Page 330 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-5-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 331 of 376

DRAFT



Page 332 of 376

DRAFT



Page 333 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Change Order #6 for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is needed to address extension of the construction duration,
resulting from weather delays and the Contractor’s death. (Additional information attached).

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #6.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will not increase or decrease the contract sum. Architect fees will not be increased or decreased as a result of
this Change Order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #6 TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

Page 334 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-6-new-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 335 of 376

DRAFT



Page 336 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I,II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Keystone Heights High School Scoreboard
Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
Keystone Heights High School’s scoreboard needs to be replaced.
 

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications contract documents to install a new scoreboard
purchased by the Athletic Department.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The project estimate of $62,262.00 provided by Brian Boatright, Architect, is available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities
Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHS Scoreboard Replacement Backup Information.pdf

Page 337 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khs-scoreboard-replacement-backup-information.pdf


Page 338 of 376

DRAFT



Page 339 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I,II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Scoreboard
Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
Orange Park High School’s scoreboard needs to be replaced.

Previous Outcomes
The school administration/departments have had the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project
that will meet user's expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications contract documents to install a new scoreboard
purchased by the Athletic Department.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The project estimate of $62,262.00 provided by Brian Boatright, Architect, is available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities
Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPH Scoreboard Replacement Backup Information.pdf

Page 340 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-scoreboard-replacement-backup-information.pdf


Page 341 of 376

DRAFT



Page 342 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Elementary School "R" Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Bid Package 1 (Pre-Engineered Metal Building - PEMB)

Description
In accordance with the School Board’s contract with Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc., for Construction Management At-Risk
Services for New Elementary School "R", Parrish McCall Constructors, Inc., presents to the School Board the GMP for Bid
Package 1 (Pre-Engineered Metal Building). 

Gap Analysis
The Agreement the School Board has with the Construction Manager (CM) At-Risk, Parrish McCall Constructors Inc., dated
August 5, 2021, would be amended to establish a separate GMP for Pre-Engineered Metal Building. Doing so will allow the
contractor  to  move forward immediately with ordering the long lead time item. A separate  and final  GMP for  Building
Construction of Elementary “Y” would be added to the agreement early 2022.

Previous Outcomes
The CM At-Risk at Discovery Oaks Elementary utilized multiple GMPs to allow the site work to begin while the building design
was being completed.
 

Expected Outcomes
The CM At-Risk will be able to procure this long lead time item delivery summer of 2022 thus translating to an on time project
completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve New Elementary School "R" Guaranteed Maximum Price Bid Package 1 (Pre-Engineered Metal Building).

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net 
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The GMP for the project is (to be provided after bid opening on 10-25-2021).  These funds are available and will be funded with
Impact Fees and LCIF.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 343 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Middleburg Transportation Fuel System Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $500,000.00
requires School Board approval.
 
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held September 30, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had one (1) bidder and met
the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Middleburg Transportaton Fuel System Repair/Replacement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Gary S. Bailey, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid in the amount of
$522,960.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

MB Transportation Fuel System Repair.Replacement Contract.pdf

Page 344 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mb-transportation-fuel-system-repairreplacement-contract.pdf


Page 345 of 376

DRAFT



Page 346 of 376

DRAFT



Page 347 of 376

DRAFT



Page 348 of 376

DRAFT



Page 349 of 376

DRAFT



Page 350 of 376

DRAFT



Page 351 of 376

DRAFT



Page 352 of 376

DRAFT



Page 353 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf High School and Orange Park High School

Description
Currently Oakleaf High School is over its attendance capacity.  Neighborhoods planned or under construction will bring more
students.
Orange Park High School is underutilized and has few new neighborhoods planned in its attendance area boundary.
This item is to change Oakleaf High School’s attendance area boundary to move students to attend Orange Park High School.  It
would not go into effect until the 2022-2023 school year.
Boundary description:

- West of the current Orange Park High School boundary at Orange Park Country Club.
- East of the Oakleaf Planation neighborhoods of Stonebrier, Piedmont, and Waverly.
- South of the Duval County border.
- North of the Spencer property and Ridgeview High School’s Northern attendance boundary.

Impact: Approximately 452 students.
Transportation already provided to Oakleaf High School would also be provided to Orange Park High School.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in the continued overcrowding of Oakleaf High School.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board recently approved several school attendance boundary changes in the past year.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the advertisement for public hearing of the boundary changes. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement for public hearing of attendance boundary changes for both Oakleaf High School and Orange Park
High School.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Oakleaf High & Orange Park High Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

Page 354 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-high-orange-park-high-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement.pdf


Page 355 of 376

DRAFT



Page 356 of 376

DRAFT



Page 357 of 376

DRAFT



Page 358 of 376

DRAFT



Page 359 of 376

DRAFT



ATTENDANCE BOUNDARY REVISIONS FOR: 

OAKLEAF, ORANGE PARK AND RIDGEVIEW HIGH SCHOOLS, OAKLEAF AND ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH 

SCHOOLS. 

The school Board of Clay County is considering revisions to the attendance boundaries of the above 

listed schools to be effective at the start of the 2021/2022 school year. 

The proposed attendance boundary realignment for the above listed schools is necessary to more 

effectively utilize existing facilities, services and neighborhood design in anticipation of residential 

development planned and now under construction under the Branan Field Future Land Use plan. 

The recommended realignment does not impact current students’ attendance boundaries or school 

assignments.  A public hearing will be scheduled on this topic Thursday, December 9th, at 6:00 p.m. in 

the Teacher Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island 

Florida. 

Maps may be viewed on the Clay County District Schools’ website, www.oneclay.net 

under: Parents, School Rezoning.  For additional information, please contact Bryce Ellis, Assistant 

Superintendent of Operations, 904-336-6853 or email Bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net 

 

 

Page 360 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf High School and Ridgeview High School

Description
Currently Oakleaf High School is over its attendance capacity.  Neighborhoods planned or under construction will bring more
students.
Ridgeview High School is underutilized and has few new neighborhoods planned in its attendance area boundary.
This item is to change Oakleaf High School’s attendance area boundary and move students to attend Ridgeview High School. 
The new attendance boundary would not go into effect until the 2022-2023 school year.
Boundary description:

- West of the Spencer property along “Study Area” 10’s eastern boundary
- East of the First Coast Expressway (FCX)
- South of the Northern boundary of the Cameron Oaks development.
- North of Ridgeview High school’s current boundary (Trailridge Rd extended East beyond FCX).

Impact: approximately 54 students.  Transportation already provided to OHS would also be provided to RHS.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in the continued overcrowding of Oakleaf High School.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has recently approved several school attendance boundary changes: TES, CGE, LAJ, LJH, OHS, and RHS.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the advertisement for public hearing of both boundary changes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement for public hearing of attendance boundary changes for both Oakleaf High School and Ridgeview
High School.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Oakleaf High School to Ridgeview High Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

Page 361 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-high-school-to-ridgeview-high-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement_1.pdf


Potential neighborhoods to RHS
-Cameron Oaks, Kindlewood (54 students)

Other options to RHS from OHS

54

Kindlewood:  North of Trail Ridge, East of 
FCX, South of Kindlewood Dr (54 students)

Page 362 of 376

DRAFT



ATTENDANCE BOUNDARY REVISIONS FOR: 

OAKLEAF, ORANGE PARK AND RIDGEVIEW HIGH SCHOOLS, OAKLEAF AND ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH 

SCHOOLS. 

The school Board of Clay County is considering revisions to the attendance boundaries of the above 

listed schools to be effective at the start of the 2021/2022 school year. 

The proposed attendance boundary realignment for the above listed schools is necessary to more 

effectively utilize existing facilities, services and neighborhood design in anticipation of residential 

development planned and now under construction under the Branan Field Future Land Use plan. 

The recommended realignment does not impact current students’ attendance boundaries or school 

assignments.  A public hearing will be scheduled on this topic Thursday, December 9th, at 6:00 p.m. in 

the Teacher Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island 

Florida. 

Maps may be viewed on the Clay County District Schools’ website, www.oneclay.net 

under: Parents, School Rezoning.  For additional information, please contact Bryce Ellis, Assistant 

Superintendent of Operations, 904-336-6853 or email Bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net 

 

 

Page 363 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Approve Advertisement for Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf Junior High and Orange Park Junior High
Schools

Description
Currently Oakleaf Junior High School is in a rapid growth area, neighborhoods planned or under construction will bring more
students to the school and it will approach capacity in the near future. Orange Park Junior High has little to no planned growth
and is underutilized and will remain underutilized until its boundaries are changed.  This item is to change Oakleaf Junior High
School’s attendance area boundary to move students to attend Orange Park Junior High School.  It would not go into effect until
the 2022-2023 school year.
Boundary description:

- West of the current Orange Park High boundary at Orange Park Country Club.
- East of the Oakleaf Planation neighborhoods of Stonebrier, Piedmont and Waverly
- South of the Duval County border.
- North of the Spencer property and RHS’s Northern attendance boundary.

Impact: approximately 200 students
Transportation already provided to Oakleaf Junior would also be provided to Orange Park Junior.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in Argyle area students’ continued Okleaf Junior attendance.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has recently approved several school attendance boundary changes.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the advertisement for public hearing of both boundary changes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement for public hearing of attendance boundary changes for both Oakleaf Junior High School and Orange
Park Junior High School.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Oakleaf Junior & Orange Park Junior Boundary Realignment.pdf

Attendance boundary revision advertisement.pdf

Page 364 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oakleaf-junior-orange-park-junior-boundary-realignment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/attendance-boundary-revision-advertisement_2.pdf


Page 365 of 376

DRAFT



ATTENDANCE BOUNDARY REVISIONS FOR: 

OAKLEAF, ORANGE PARK AND RIDGEVIEW HIGH SCHOOLS, OAKLEAF AND ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH 

SCHOOLS. 

The school Board of Clay County is considering revisions to the attendance boundaries of the above 

listed schools to be effective at the start of the 2021/2022 school year. 

The proposed attendance boundary realignment for the above listed schools is necessary to more 

effectively utilize existing facilities, services and neighborhood design in anticipation of residential 

development planned and now under construction under the Branan Field Future Land Use plan. 

The recommended realignment does not impact current students’ attendance boundaries or school 

assignments.  A public hearing will be scheduled on this topic Thursday, December 9th, at 6:00 p.m. in 

the Teacher Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island 

Florida. 

Maps may be viewed on the Clay County District Schools’ website, www.oneclay.net 

under: Parents, School Rezoning.  For additional information, please contact Bryce Ellis, Assistant 

Superintendent of Operations, 904-336-6853 or email Bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net 

 

 

Page 366 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Mrs. Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 11.4.21.pdf

Page 367 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-11421.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Charles Perry Partners, Inc. General Contractor $300,000,000.00 November 30, 2022 

E. Vaughan Rivers, Inc. General Contractor $25,000,000.00 November 30, 2022 

Gray Construction Services, Inc. General Contractor $15,000,000.00 November 30, 2022 

Network Cabling Services, Inc. Specialty Electrical 
Contractor 

$2,000,000.00 November 30, 2022 

Scorpio  General Contractor $50,000,000.00 November 30, 2022 

Wright Plumbing of Clay County, Inc. Building and Plumbing 
Contractor 

$300,000.00 November 30, 2022 

 

Page 368 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - School "R" Name Suggestions

Description
The District Naming Committee, which is comprised of members who represent major operations of the school district and
community, elementary and secondary school principals, teachers, members of  School Advisory Councils, and community
members met numerous times to select three options to submit to the Board for the naming of Elementary "R". 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Per Clay County School Board Policy, the naming committee selects three options then presents those names to the Board for
final selection. 

Expected Outcomes
The Board will discuss and come to a consensus on choosing a name for Elementary "R". 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will select one of the recommended name suggestions for Elementary "R". 

Contact
Terri Dennis, Chief of Staff, at terri.dennis@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Names for School R.pdf

Page 369 of 376

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/names-for-school-r.pdf


Spring Park 
Elementary

SPE

Home of the Minnows
The Spring Park Minnows
would graduate to Junior 
High Dolphins and then to 
High School Sharks!

Page 370 of 376

DRAFT



Blackcreek Trails 
Elementary School

-Ramblers-

BTE
There is no place in Florida richer in history than the Black Creek and the village of Middleburg formerly the 

town of Black Creek.  At one time, during the mid 1800’s Middleburg was the principal port for water shipments 

in the state. Boats came up Black creek from the St. Johns River loaded with lumber, crossties, wood and 

cotton for distribution throughout the state. “Black creek is a very deep and in places is over a quarter of a mile 

wide. Boats of fairly deep draft can navigate it easily”. This was the description of this area to early mariners.

About ten years after the settlement of St. Augustine, several Spanish families, moved into the interior of 

Florida and settled on Black Creek near where Middleburg is now situated. 
Page 371 of 376

DRAFT



Magnolia Mills Elementary School
MME

~ A U.S. post office was established at Hibernia 
on June 19, 1849, but its name was changed on 
October 17, 1853 to Magnolia Mills, and on July 30, 
1866, it was changed to Green Cove Springs. 

~ The first development of the area to become 
Green Cove Springs was by George I. F. Clarke 
in 1816 from land he received from a Spanish 
Land Grant.  Mr. Clark used the land for 
construction and operation of a lumber or sawmill
for harvesting of Live Oak trees.

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Green_Cove_Springs,_Florida
Owls

Page 372 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action A 11.4.2021 (1).pdf (Confidential)

Page 373 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action B 11.4.2021 (1).pdf (Confidential)

Page 374 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action C 11.4.21.pdf (Confidential)

Page 375 of 376

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

November 4, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D5 - Human Resources Special Action D

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 376 of 376

DRAFT


